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MEMORANDUM 

TO:        Alcoholic Beverage Control Board  
 

DATE:  November 12, 2019 

FROM: Erika McConnell, Director 
 

RE:  301 Lancaster’s  

 
Requested 
Action: 

4th Waiver Application; transfer of ownership and DBA change 

  
Statutory 
and 
Regulatory 
Authority: 

AS 04.06.090(b):  “The board shall review all applications for licenses made under 
this title and may order the director to issue, renew, revoke, transfer, or suspend 
licenses and permits authorized under this title.” 
 
3 AAC 304.170(b): “A licensee may apply to the board, requesting that the board 
waive the operating requirement of AS 04.11.330(a)(3)... Under AS 04.11.330(a)(3), 
the board will determine whether, through no fault of the licensee or because the 
premises are under construction, the licensed premises could not be operated for the 
required time during the preceding calendar year.” 

 
3 AAC 304.170(e):  “The board will, in its discretion, deny a third or subsequent 
consecutive application for waiver unless the licensee clearly shows that the licensed 
premises were not operated because the premises were condemned or substantially 
destroyed by any cause. If the premises identified on an applicant's license are not 
leased or owned by the licensee, the third or subsequent application will, in the 
board's discretion, be denied. Additionally, a third or subsequent consecutive 
application for waiver that does not identify a licensed premises location will, in the 
board's discretion, be denied.” 
 
AS 04.11.040(a): “A license issued under this title may not be transferred to another 
person except with the written consent of the board.” 

  
Staff Rec.: Deny the 4th waiver request; hold a public hearing on the objection; approve the 

transfer with delegation 
 
Background:  On February 19, 2019, the board approved a third waiver for 2018 for this license 
with the caveat that a fourth waiver will not be granted. Notice of the board’s action, including the 
caveat, was mailed and emailed to the licensee on February 25, 2019. 
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First and second waivers for Foxglove, LLC were approved for 2016-2017. Prior to the transfer of 
this license to Foxglove in 2016, license #301 was held by Del Rois Package Store Inc. which was 
granted waivers for 2014 and 2015. The license has not been operated for six years (2014-2019).  
 
The licensee does not qualify for a fourth waiver—the license has been in “no premises” status since 
2016 so there is no premises to have been condemned or substantially destroyed. The regulation at 3 
AAC 304.170(e) specifically states that a third or subsequent waiver that does not identify a licensed 
premises location will be denied, indicating that it is the board’s general intent that a license not be 
in a location for only two years. The board has the discretion to approve waivers despite this, and 
used that discretion to approve a third waiver for this license.  
 
Although the licensee has found a buyer for the license, the proposed new owner, Lancaster’s, LLC, 
does not have a location for the license and proposes to keep it at “no premises.” 
 
Although the fourth waiver should be denied, because the license is not up for renewal until the end 
of 2020, the license would not expire if the board approves the fourth waiver. Instead, 3 AAC 
304.170(g) would apply, which says, “If an application for waiver is denied, an application for license 
renewal for the succeeding license period will be denied by the board under AS 04.11.330(a)(3).” 
Thus there is no reason not to approve the transfer with delegation (note objection from the 
Department of Labor – Employment Security). If the license owner applies for renewal at the end of 
2020, then the board would deny the renewal at that time. 
 
 
Attachment: February 19, 2019, ABC Board minutes (excerpt) 
  February 25, 2019, letter to licensee 
  Waiver application 
  DOL objection 
  Transfer application 
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Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 
Meeting Minutes  

February 19-20, 2019 
First Judicial District  
Alaska State Library 
395 Whittier Street 

Juneau, Alaska 
 

 
 
 
 ADMINISTRATION 9:00 am 
 

A. Call to Order 9:01 am 
 

B. Roll Call 
 
Board Members Present 
Bob Klein, Chair, Industry Member 
Rex Leath, Vice Chair, Public Safety Member 
Glenn Brady, Industry Member 
Robert (Bobby) Evans, Rural Member 
Sara Erickson, Public Member  
 
Staff Present 
Erika McConnell, Director 
Mikal Milton, Records and Licensing Supervisor 
 
Legal Counsel Present   
Harriet Milks, Assistant Attorney General 
 

C. Approval of Agenda 9:04 am 
 

Erika McConnell states that Tab 15, the appeal of denial of catering permits for license 4763 DBA Bobby’s 
Downtown has been withdrawn. She states that items T, U, and Y under the Delegated Consent Agenda are 
Public Convenience licenses that are currently scheduled for consideration with the Delegated Consent Agenda. 
She requests that the applications for licenses 5737 DBA Mexi Co, 5738 DBA The Smokehouse, and 5746 DBA 
Allen Marine Tours be considered separately from the remainder of the Delegated Consent agenda. Tabs for each 
item are provided to the board on their laptops.  
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Department of Labor Employment Security non-compliant. 
 

Bob Klein summarizes the information in Tab 25. 
 
Glenn Brady moves to approve license 4274 with delegation (including resolution of the DOL 
objection).  
Rex Leath seconds the motion.  
None opposed, motion carries 
 

C. 5299 Royal Princess: Princess Cruise Lines, Ltd.  TAB 26 
Alaskan Waters 
License: Common Carrier – Seasonal 
From: Emerald Princess 
 
Transfer of location and DBA change. 
Approved: Department of Revenue 
Pending: Department of Labor 
Background investigations: complete 
Department of Labor Employment Security non-compliant. 

 
Bob Klein summarizes the information for Tab 26.  
 
Mikal Milton clarifies that staff made a clerical error in sending notification to the Department of Labor, but that 
applicants are still required to conform to all applicable laws; the DOL objection was lifted between the 
completion deadline and ABC meeting. 
 
Glenn Brady moves to approve the transfer with delegation.  
Rex Leath seconds the motion. 
None opposed, motion carries. 

 
 WAIVERS OF MINIMUM OPERATING REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Third Waiver Applications 
 
Bob Klein states a conflict must be declared and recuses Glenn Brady for financial interest in license 3487 
at Tab 29. 
 
Bob Klein summarizes Tabs 27-29. 
 
Sara Erickson and Bob Klein discuss the length of time that a licensee can be allowed to not have a 
premises.   
 
Sara Erickson moves to grant third waivers for licenses 301 No DBA, 635 DBA La Mex, and 3487 DBA 
Salchaket Roadhouse, with the provision that a 4th waiver will not be granted. 
Rex Leath seconds the motion.  
 
Glenn Brady, as applicant who has submitted application for 3487 to purchase, states that he intends to 
operate license 3487 in 2019.  
 
None opposed, motion carries 4-0.  
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Glenn Brady rejoins the meeting. 
    

1. 301 No DBA: Foxglove LLC  TAB 27 
No Premises, Matanuska-Susitna Borough 
Waiver for 2018.  
 

2. 635 La Mex: La Mexicana, Inc.   TAB 28 
No Premises, Municipality of Anchorage 
Waiver for 2018.  
 

3. 3487 Salchaket Roadhouse: Thompson Ventures, LLC  TAB 29 
No Premises, Fairbanks North Star Borough 
Waiver for 2018.  

 
B. Fourth Waiver Applications 

 
1. 1566 Steve’s Sports Bar and Grill: SLF International, Inc.    TAB 30 

No Premises, Municipality of Anchorage 
Waiver for 2018. 

 
Dan Coffey, counsel, and Steve Fibranz, licensee, are present in person to discuss the application. 
Steve Fibranz summarizes that he has been attempting to find a premises for his license.  
 
Dan Coffey states that he has never seen a fourth waiver being approved, and then he discusses the reasons he 
finds to approve the 4th waiver. He references ‘mistakes’ that have been made. He states that Fibranz didn’t 
realize that a 4th waiver would not be granted until September of 2018, and that he feels that due process was 
not observed. He says that the SLUP Process is overly complicated within the Municipality. He states that the 
board is allowed to have substantial discretion. He discusses the agreement in place with license 1244 DBA The 
Woodshed.  
 
Glenn Brady clarifies that there is currently a lease agreement with The Woodshed.  
 
Bob Klein states that Fibranz did not attend the meeting that was held January 23rd last year where his 3rd waiver 
was approved. 
 
Glenn Brady moves to grant the 4th waiver with the recommendation presented in page 15 of 52 regarding the 
fees and other conditions on the waiver.  
No second. 
 
Bob Klein states that a corresponding motion would be to deny the application.  
 
Bobby Evans moves to deny the 4th waiver. 
Sara Erickson seconds the motion. 
 
Bobby Evans states that he does not find there to be extenuating circumstances.  
Rex Leath states that in the tab it says that the customary notice was why the licensee was unable to operate 
and he feels that notice not being given is not a reason to not operate. Page 4- 25 indicate that location seems to 
be a problem with the owner and not destruction of premises. Page 7 discusses the value of the license, and Rex 
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February 25, 2019 
 
Foxglove LLC 
No DBA 
3201 Tamarak Avenue 
Wasilla, AK 99654 
 
Re: No DBA, License #301 
 
Dear Foxglove LLC:  
 
At the February 19, 2019, meeting of the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board in Juneau, Alaska, the 
board voted to approve your 3rd waiver of operations for the 2018 calendar year. As part of their 
motion, the board indicated that they will not approve a fourth waiver of operations.  
 
Please contact alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov with any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Erika McConnell 
Director 
 
cc:  License File 
 Matanuska-Susitna Borough 
  

mailto:alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov





















